
For any apologies or requests for further information, or to give notice of a question to be 
asked by a member of the public  
Contact:  Mark Nedderman  
Tel: 01270 686459 
E-Mail: mark.nedderman@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Monday, 12th July, 2010 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: East Committee Room - Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, 
Crewe, CW1 2BJ 

 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
3. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or 

prejudicial interests and for members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to 
any item on the agenda.  

 
 

4. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on 

any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee. 
  
Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide 
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a 
number of speakers. 
 
Note: In order for officers to undertake any background research, it would be helpful if 
members of the public contacted the Scrutiny officer listed at the foot of the agenda, at least 
one working day before the meeting to provide brief details of the matter to be covered.  

 
 

Public Document Pack



5. Work Programme Progress Report  (Pages 7 - 14) 
 
 To consider a report of the Borough Solicitor. 

 
6. Legal Services Presentation  (Pages 15 - 18) 
 
 To consider a report of the Borough Solicitor. 

 
7. ICT Harmonisation and Improvement   
 
 To receive a presentation from the ICT Manager to provide background information in respect 

of the work programme item. 

 
8. Outsourcing of Discretionary Leisure and Cultural Services   
 
 To receive a presentation from the Head of Wellbeing to provide background information in 

respect of the work programme item. 

 
 

9. Risk Management   
 
 To receive a presentation from the Head of Policy and Performance to provide background 

information in respect of the work programme item. 

 
 

10. Corporate Plan  (Pages 19 - 54) 
 
 To consider a report of the Head of Human Resources considered by Cabinet on 14 June 

2010, which set in motion the formal process to consult Overview and Scrutiny Committees in 
accordance with the Budget and Policy Framework procedure rules. The Committee is asked 
to consider making observations on the Corporate Plan which will be considered by Cabinet 
on 19 July 2010.  

 
 

11. Forward Plan - Extracts  (Pages 55 - 60) 
 
 To note the current forward plan, identify any new items, and to determine whether any 

further examination of new issues is appropriate. 

 
12. Consultations from Cabinet   
 
 To note any consultations referred to the Committee from Cabinet and to determine whether 

any further action is appropriate. 

 
13. Staffing of the Scrutiny Team   
 
 The Chairman to update Members on the staffing of the Scrutiny Team. 

 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
held on Tuesday, 15th June, 2010 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, 

Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor A Thwaite (Chairman) 
Councillor J Narraway (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors A Arnold, G Barton, G Baxendale, D Brickhill, S Conquest, 
H Davenport, M Davies, P Findlow, D Topping and S Wilkinson 

 
Apologies 

 
Councillors J Crockatt and P Edwards 

 
14 OFFICERS PRESENT  

 
Lisa Quinn – Borough Treasurer 
Mark Nedderman Senior Scrutiny Officer 

 
15 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of te meeting held on 19 April 2010 be approved 
as a correct record. 

 
16 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
17 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION  

 
There were no statements from members of the public. 

 
18 WORK PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT  

 
The Committee considered a report of the Borough Solicitor setting out a process 
to approve the work programme for 2010/2011. 
 
 This Committee at its meeting held on 19 April 2010 had approved a paper entitled 

‘Strengthening the Scrutiny Function’ which proposed a more formal approach to 
the work programme setting process in 2010 to enable the views of Cabinet to be 
fed into the process. This approach had also been considered and endorsed by the 
Scrutiny Chairs Group. The main aim of the new approach was to share work 
programmes with colleagues in Cabinet and Corporate Management Team (CMT) 
at the outset, so that Overview and Scrutiny became an integral part of the 
corporate business planning process of the Council.  Work programme items would 
subsequently be linked to relevant Corporate plan targets, and where appropriate, 
Performance Indicators and LAA targets. 

 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



 It was intended that emerging work programmes of all five Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees would be presented to Cabinet informally in June, and then each 
Committee would formally endorse its work programme before the summer recess. 

 
 The committee was reminded that it needed to ensure that there was sufficient 

leeway to allow for additional activities throughout the year. 
 
 A schedule attached to the report, set out all existing items in the work programme.  

 
Members were also requested to have regard to the emerging Corporate Plan and 
Sustainable Communities Strategy, both of which were currently in consultation 
stage and expected to be adopted by Council in July.  

 
 
 
The Committee reviewed each work programme item and made the following comments 
 

Issue Description Comment Date  

Grants to 
Voluntary 
Organisations 

Task and Finish group set up 
to offer advice to Cabinet on a 
fair and equitable system of 
allocating financial support and 
grants to the Voluntary and 
Community sector. 

Current review 
suspended to allow 
an officer working 
group to pull 
together a full picture 
of existing 
commitments from 
the demised 
authorities. The 
Committee to 
receive a progress 
report in the 
summer. This matter 
will now transfer to 
Sustainable 
Communities 

N/A 

Budget Consultation group set up to 
review consultation 
arrangements for 2011/2012. 

The group guided 
the 2010/2011 
consultation 
process, but its main 
body of work will be 
to determine 
consultation 
arrangements in 
subsequent years. 
The group is due to 
meet again on 
Friday 18 June 

Start June 
2010 and 
ongoing 

Page 2



Sustainable 
Community 
Strategy 

Sustainable Communities, will 
now take the lead 

No action required 
Delete from this 
work programme 

N/A 

LAP’s Sustainable Communities will 
now take the lead  

No action required 
Delete from this 
work programme 

N/A 

Corporate Plan Sustainable Communities will 
now take the lead 

The future 
involvement of 
Corporate Scrutiny 
Committee queried. 
In meantime, 
Corporate Scrutiny 
be given an 
opportunity to 
comment on the 
plan. 

July 2010 

Local 
Development 
Framework 

Sustainable Communities will 
now take the lead 

No action required 
Delete from this 
work programme 

TBA 

Video recording of 
Council Meetings 

Should the Council invest in 
providing broadcast facilities. 

The Committee 
considered interim 
report based upon 
experience of C & N 
,recommended that 
no action be taken 
until the long term 
meeting 
arrangements known 
 

N/A 

Start Time of 
Committee 
meetings 

Some members in employment 
had problems with morning 
meetings. A request was 
received to review start times 

Recommended that 
majority of 
Committee meetings 
begin at 
2.00pm.Majority of 
committee chairmen 
not taken on board 
and most meetings 
remain in the 
morning 

N/A 

Cheshire East 
Culture 

Part of the transformation 
agenda to inculcate a new 
‘Cheshire East Culture’ 

No action taken to 
date  

Ongoing 

ICT 
harmonisation 
and Improvement 

Harmonisation  and 
improvement ICT facilities 
across the Council 

Presentation 
received by the 
Committee in 
November 2010. 
Further presentation 
required to assess 
progress. 

Presentation 
13 July 2010 

Risk Management Assess the Council’s Risk The future TBA 

Page 3



management arrangements involvement of 
Corporate Scrutiny 
Committee queried 

Local 
Transport/liaison 
committees 

Consider setting up local 
political arrangements to 
advise/determine local highway 
and transportation issues 

New item not yet 
prioritised, 
considered to be a 
low priority 

TBA 

Libraries Progress 
Report 

Matter referred from 
Sustainable Communities 
Committee as a result of the 
realignment of remits 

New item not yet 
prioritised, 
considered to be a 
low priority 

TBA 

Outsourcing of 
discretionary 
Leisure and 
Cultural Services 

Matter referred from 
Sustainable Communities 
Committee as a result of the 
realignment of remits 

New item not yet 
prioritised 

Presentation 
13 July with 
view to setting 
up a Task and 
Finish group 

Legal Services Presentation on the structure 
and range of responsibilities 
covered by the legal service 

New item not yet 
prioritised 

13 July 2010 

Communications 
Service 

Presentation on the structure 
and range of responsibilities 
covered by the 
communications service 

New item not yet 
prioritised 

Presentation 
future meeting 

Assets register Presentation on the assets 
register and the ‘assets 
Challenge’ process 

Not yet prioritised Presentation13 
July 2010 with 
view to setting 
up Task and 
Finish Group 

Review of IT 
provision and 
support for 
Members 

Review of the work of the 
Cabinet panel Chaired by 
Councillor Narraway 

Regular updates Ongoing 

Sport 2012 
Olympics 

 Delete from work 
programme 

 

Events The Committee to be consulted 
by the Portfolio holder on 
specific issues 

No action required at 
the moment 

N/A 

Future of Council 
owned farms 

 Covered in Assets 
presentation/review 

 

Procurement  Presentation at 
future meeting 

TBA 

Shared Services  Presentation at 
future meeting 

TBA 

 
 

19 MEMBERS IT PANEL END OF YEAR REPORT - 2010  
 
The Committee considered a report of the chairman of the Members IT panel 
summarisng progress made during the 12 months since the inception of the 
panel. 
 
The panel had nmet 13 times during 2009/2010 and had made significant 
progress in a number of areas including: 
 

Page 4



• Majority of of Chesire East CouncilPC’s and laptops being encrypted and 
virtually all Members using ‘Our cheshire’ to access their email system 

• Over a quarter of Members have received new PC’s or laptops, with a 
further rollout later this year 

• 81 new Samsung CLX 3175 printers have been purchased 

• A training needs survey completed 

• Establishment of a single number for the IT service desk and an out of 
hours service. 

 
Work was continuing to replace old PC’s and laptops used by Members and IT 
training guides will be produced and the option of focused PC topic training 
sessions explored further. 
In addition, a new support logging system will be installed and a training and 
support package will be developed for new members ready for May 2011. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received and noted. 

 
20 FORWARD PLAN - EXTRACTS  

 
The Committee considered items currently listed in the forward plan. 
 
Members discussed the need to have more detailed information in the forward 
plan in a more timely manner to enable Overview and Scrutiny Members to 
identify potential work programme items at an earlier stage  
 
RESOLVED – That cabinet be requested to include items in the forward plan at 
as early stage in the decision making process as possible and to aim to include 
items for a minimum of 4 months wherever possible. 

 
21 CONSULTATIONS FROM CABINET  

 
There were no consultations from Cabinet. 

 
22 MEETING WITH PORTFOLIO HOLDERS  

 
The Committee discussed arrangements to meet the portfolio holders responsible 
for functions within the Corporate Committee’s remit.  The Chairman informed the 
Committee that informal discussions would be required with Portfolio holders to 
talk about potential work programme items and all Member of the Committee 
would be invited to attend. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Senior Scrutiny Committee be requested to set up a 
meeting with portfolio holders and extend an invitation to the meeting to all 
Members of the Committee, and a summary of the points discussed with portfolio 
holders be circulated to all Members of this Committee in due Course. 

 
23 MEMBERS AWARENESS SESSION ON THE COUNCIL'S 

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE  
 
RESOLVED – That consideration of this matter be deferred to the next meeting. 

 
 
 

Page 5



 
The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 4.10 pm 

 
Councillor A Thwaite (Chairman) 

 
 

Page 6



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO:  CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
12 July 2010 

Report of: Borough Solicitor 
Subject/Title: Work Programme update 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To review items in the 2010/2011 Work Programme, to consider new items 

listed in the schedule attached, together with any other items suggested by 
Committee Members. 

 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Committee recommend a draft work programme for 2010/2011 to be 

shared with Cabinet. 
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 It is good practice to agree and review the Work Programme to enable effective  
          management of the Committee’s business. 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1 Not known at this stage. 
 
 
7.0 Financial Implications 2010/11 and beyond  
7.1 Not known at this stage. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications  
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  

Agenda Item 5Page 7



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

 
9.1 There are no identifiable risks. 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 This Committee at its meeting held on 15 June reviewed the 2009/2010 work 

programme, in line with the recommendations approved in the Strengthening 
Scrutiny‘paper approved by Members in April 2010. The Committee also had 
regard to changes to the Committee’s remit as recommended by the Scrutiny 
Chairs Group. The recommendations in relation to the new remits have been 
considered by the Constitution Committee and a recommendation will now be 
considered by Council on 22 July 2010, to accept the Scrutiny Chairs group’s 
recommendations in full with the exception of the responsibility for overseeing 
the scrutiny of the Corporate Plan and Risk Management remaining with this 
Committee. The schedule attached reflects that position. 

 
10.2 In reviewing the work programme, Members must pay close attention to the 

emerging Corporate Plan which appears elsewhere on this agenda and 
Sustainable Communities Strategy. Both of these documents are currently in 
consultation stage and are expected to be adopted by Council in July 

 
10.3 Members must also have regard to the general criteria which should be applied 

to all potential items when considering whether any Scrutiny activity is 
appropriate. Matters should be assessed against the following criteria: 

 

• Does the issue fall within a corporate priority 
 

• Is the issue of key interest to the public  
 

• Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing service for 
which there is no obvious explanation  

 

• Is there a pattern of budgetary overspends  
 

• Is it a matter raised by external audit management letters and or audit 
reports? 

 

• Is there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service 
 
10.4 If during the assessment process any of the following emerge, then 

the topic should be rejected: 
 

• The topic is already being addressed elsewhere 
 

• The matter is subjudice 
 

• Scrutiny cannot add value or is unlikely to be able to conclude an 
investigation within the specified timescale 

 

Page 8



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

10.5 The Budget Consultation group has now held its first meeting of this municipal 
year. The group has identified 4 key milestones in the budget consultation 
process which are: 

 

• Stage1 – Backward look at  the 2010/2011 process 
 

• Stage 2- July/August priorities to be developed based upon the 
Corporate Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy 

 

• Stage 3 – October – Forming of the draft budget 
 

• Stage 4 – January 2011, stakeholder events with Scrutiny involvement, 
followed by detailed look at the budget proposals by the group. 

 
10.6 The group acknowledged that there would also be number of 

intermediate meetings as required and that each Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee would be consulted at each key milestone. 

 
10.7 Members acknowledged the strong links between the business 

planning process and Corporate Plan. 
 
10.8 The group subsequently agreed the following: 
 

(a) – That Partner Organisations such as Police, Fire PCT’s etc be 
invited to attend the October meeting to enable those 
organisations to share initial budget proposals. 
 
(b) – That the Scope for the current consultation process be 
approved at the next meeting. 
 
(c) That each Overview and Scrutiny Committee be requested to 
examine draft budgets within their own remit between November 
2010 and January 2011. 

 
 
 
 
11 Access to Information 

 

                           The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting  
                           the report writer: 

 
 
 
 
 Name:           Mark Nedderman 
 Designation: Senior Scrutiny Officer 

           Tel No:         01270 686459 
            Email:         mark.nedderman@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 10



Committee/Corporate/meetings/12july/workprogramme 12 July 2010 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 12 July 2010      
 

Issue Description/Comments Suggested 
by 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Corporate 
Priority 

Current 
Position R,A,G 

Date for 
completion 

Budget Consultation group set up to 
review consultation 
arrangements for 
2011/2012. 

Committee F Keegan Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East – Value for 
money 

The group guided 
the 2010/2011 
consultation 
process, but its 
main body of work 
will be to 
determine 
consultation 
arrangements in 
subsequent years. 
The group is due 
to meet again on 
Friday 18 June 

Start date 
June 2010 
and ongoing 

Corporate Plan Sustainable Communities 
will now take the lead 

Committee D Brown Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East – Value for 
money 

The Committee to 
comment on the 
Draft Corporate 
Plan 

12 July 2010 

Cheshire East 
Culture 

Part of the transformation 
agenda to inculcate a new 
‘Cheshire East Culture’ 

Committee F Keegan Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East – Value for 
money 

No action taken to 
date  

Ongoing 

P
a
g
e
 1

1



Committee/Corporate/meetings/12july/workprogramme 12 July 2010 

ICT 
harmonisation 
and 
Improvement 

Harmonisation  and 
improvement ICT facilities 
across the Council 

Committee F Keegan Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East – Value for 
money 

Presentation 
received by the 
Committee in 
November 2010 

Presentation 
12 July 2010 

Risk 
Management 

Assess the Council’s Risk 
management arrangements 

Committee D Brown Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East – Value for 
money 

No action to date. 
Update required 
from Head of Audit 

Ongoing 

Local 
Transport/liaison 
committees 

Consider setting up local 
political arrangements to 
advise/determine local 
highway and transportation 
issues 

Chairman R Menlove The growth and 
development of a 
sustainable 
Cheshire East 

New item not yet 
prioritised 

TBA 

Libraries 
Progress Report 

Matter referred from 
Sustainable Communities 
Committee as a result of the 
realignment of remits 

Sustainable 
Communities 

A Knowles The growth and 
development of a 
sustainable 
Cheshire East 

New item not yet 
prioritised 

TBA 

Outsourcing of 
discretionary 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services 

Matter referred from 
Sustainable Communities 
Committee as a result of the 
realignment of remits 

Sustainable 
Communities 

A Knowles The growth and 
development of a 
sustainable 
Cheshire East 

New item not yet 
prioritised 

Presentation 
12 July with 
view to setting 
up a Task and 
Finish group 

Legal Services Presentation on the 
structure and range of 
responsibilities covered by 
the legal service 

Scrutiny 
Chairs group 

F Keegan Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East   

New item not yet 
prioritised 

12 July 2010 

P
a

g
e
 1

2



Committee/Corporate/meetings/12july/workprogramme 12 July 2010 

Communications 
Service 

Presentation on the 
structure and range of 
responsibilities covered by 
the communications service 

Scrutiny 
Chairs group 

D Brown Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East  

New item not yet 
prioritised 

Presentation 
future meeting 

Assets register Presentation on the assets 
register and the ‘assets 
Challenge’ process 

Committee P Mason The growth and 
development of a 
sustainable 
Cheshire East 

On track presentation12 
July 2010 with 
view to setting 
up Task and 
Finish Group 

Procurement Presentation on 
procurement arrangements 
in Cheshire East 

Portfolio 
Holder 

P Mason Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East   

No yet prioritised TBA 

Shared Services Presentation to raise 
Member awareness of 
Shared Service 
arrangements across 
Cheshire. 

  Being an excellent 
Council and working 
with others-to truly 
deliver in Cheshire 
East   

No yet prioritised TBA 

 

 
 
 
Items to Monitor or consider at future Meetings 
Shared Services – presentation to future meeting 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

3



Committee/Corporate/meetings/12july/workprogramme 12 July 2010 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 1

4



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 
Date of Meeting: 

 
12th July 2010 

Report of: Borough Solicitor 
Subject/Title: Legal Services 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

Cllr Frank Keegan 

                                                               
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 Members asked for a general update/briefing about the work of Legal 

Services and it was agreed that this Committee should receive a 
presentation. 

 
1.2 The Legal Services Manager and Borough Solicitor will attend the meeting 

and supplement the information provided in this report with additional 
material, all of which is aimed at explaining the work of Legal Services and 
the context in which it operates. 

 
2.0 Decision Requested 
 
2.1 Members are asked to receive the presentation. 
 
3.0 Background and Options 
 
3.1 Legal Services deals with the full range of local authority legal work.  It is 

split into three teams: Corporate; People; and Places, Regulatory and 
Compliance.  A diagram at Appendix 1 shows the worktypes associated 
with those teams.  A diagram at Appendix 2 shows the structure that was 
originally envisaged and the prevailing position (due to budgetary 
constraints). 

 
3.2 Further documentation will be supplied and explained to Members at the 

meeting, e.g. benchmarking data is available which compares legal 
services across a range of local authorities. 

 
4.0 Access to Information 
 

           4.1 The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting 
the report writer: 

 
   Name: Andrew Leadbetter 
   Designation: Legal Services Manager 

                 Tel No: 01270 686642 
                 Email: andrew.leadbetter@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 6Page 15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LEGAL SERVICES MANAGER 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
SUPERVISOR 
 

 
CORPORATE TEAM 

 

 
PEOPLE TEAM 

  
PLACES, REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE 

TEAM 
 

Property  
Employment (operational and policy) 
Procurement  
Contract  
General Litigation 
Commercial  
Corporate  
PFI Projects 
Shared Service/Joint Working 
 
General local government law advice 
Information law (DPA/FOIA) 
 

Childcare  
Adoption  
Education (internally and to schools) 
Adults  
 
 
 
 
 
 
General local government law advice 
Information law (DPA/FOIA) 

Planning  
Highways 
Licensing 
Environment 
Housing 
Rights of Way 
Trading Standards 
Benefits Prosecutions 
 
 
General local government law advice 
Information law (DPA/FOIA) 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANTS 

Support to team managers and staff generally 
Corporate 
PFI projects 
Major projects/workstreams 
General local government law advice 
Cover for Borough Solicitor 

LEGAL 
SERVICES 

APPENDIX 1 

P
a

g
e
 1

6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
  

Legal Services Manager 
(Grade 16) Administrative 

Supervisor 
(Grade 6) 

Legal Team Manager 
(Corporate) 
(Grade 13) 

Legal Team Manager 
(People) 
(Grade 13) 

Legal Team Manager 
(Places, Regulatory and Compliance) 

(Grade 13) 

Senior Lawyer 
(Property) 
(Grade 12)  

Senior Lawyer 
(Corporate/ 
Employment) 
(Grade 12)  

Senior Lawyer 
(PFI/Projects/ 
Partnership) 
(Grade 12) 

Senior Lawyer 
(Community/ 
Education) 
(Grade 12)  

Senior Lawyer 
(Childcare) 
(Grade 12)  

Senior Lawyers 
(Regulatory/Comp) 
(Grade 12) 

4 (2.6) Lawyers 
(Grade 8) 

4.5 (2.6) Lawyers 
(Contracts/Partnership/ 
Employment/Litigation) 
(Grade 11)  

5 (4) Lawyers 
(Community/Education/Childcare)  
(Grade 11)  
1 Lawyer 
(Grade 8) 
1 Legal Assistant 
(Grade 7) 
 

5 (3) Lawyers 
(Grade 11) 

4 (3) Legal Assistants (to be used variously to support teams) 
(Grade 6) 

2 Admin Assistants 
(Grade 3/4) 

Senior Lawyer 
(Environment) 
(Grade 12 

LOSS OF 3.3 FTE LAWYERS LOSS OF 1 FTE LAWYERS LOSS OF 2 FTE LAWYERS 

OVERALL LOSS OF 7.3 FTE (38.5 DOWN TO 31.2) 

LEGAL SERVICES STRUCTURE OVERLAID WITH 

POSTS THAT CAN BE FILLED WITH AVAILABLE 

BUDGET FOR 2010/2011 HIGHLIGHTING GAPS 

APPENDIX 2 

P
a
g
e
 1

7



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT: CABINET  
_________________________________________________________________ 

 
Date of Meeting: 

 
14th June 2010  

Report of: Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development  
Subject/Title: Corporate Plan  
Portfolio Holder(s) Councillor Brown  
________________________________________________________________ 

 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To update Members on the development of the Corporate Plan. 

 
2.0 Decisions Requested 
 
2.1 To approve the draft Corporate Plan in the appendix to this report for 

consultation and for submission to the relevant overview and Scrutiny 
Committees under Rule 2.1 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure 
Rules. 

 
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1      To enable the Corporate Plan to be adopted by the Council.   
 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All. 
 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 All. 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including  
 
6.1  The Corporate Plan provides the framework for all policy development 

within the Council. It is important that the priorities plans and ambitions 
set out within the plan are translated into objectives and actions for 
delivery within departmental, service, team and individual performance 
plans.  

 
7.0 Financial Implications 2010/11 and beyond (Authorised by the 

Borough Treasurer) 
 
8.1 There are likely to be financial implications in delivering the plan. In 

planning the delivery of the plan the Council will need to prioritise key 
actions and allocate available resources accordingly.  

 

Agenda Item 10Page 19



 2 

9.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor) 
 
9.1 The Corporate Plan forms part of the Policy Framework and must be 

submitted to Council for adoption following a process prescribed in the 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 

 
10.0 Risk Management  

 
10.1 None  
 
 
11.0 Background and options 
 

11.1  The Council’s inaugural Corporate Plan was adopted on an interim 
basis for 2009/10 in order to set direction and allow Cheshire East to 
set a budget.  

 
11.2 This plan now needs to be replaced and we have an option to either 

refresh the original plan for a further year or to produce a new plan 
aligned to the Council’s mid term financial planning. In order to provide 
a longer term focus on our plans along with how the Council’s 
resources should be prioritised, a decision was taken to produce a 
three year Corporate Plan for the period 2010 to 2103.  

 
11.3 The purpose of the Corporate Plan is to set the overall strategic 

direction of the Council for the next three years, against which the 
objectives, priorities resources and actions of the Council and it’s 
departments, services, teams and individuals can be aligned, set and 
performance managed.   

 
11.4 In terms of its production, the draft plan emerged from the Cabinet and 

CMT away-day on 26th January 2010 (which looked at the Council’s 
vision and priorities) and from the 2010 to 2013 business planning 
consultation process in January. In pulling the outcomes of the away-
day together it was evident that the priorities identified could be readily 
grouped in 5 areas, which have become the 5 proposed Corporate 
Objectives, as follows:    

  

• To give the people of Cheshire East more choice and control 
about services and resources.  

 

• To grow and develop a sustainable Cheshire East. 
 

• To improve life opportunities and health for everybody in 
Cheshire East. 

 

• To enhance the Cheshire East environment. 
 

• Being an excellent Council and working with others – to deliver 
for Cheshire East.  

 
11.5 The outline of the plan along with the 5 proposed objectives have been 

the subject of informal consultation with; CMT, a number of Cabinet 

Page 20



 3 

members, the Chairs and Vice Chairs of Scrutiny and a Member 
briefing over the past few weeks.  Nevertheless Cabinet is now 
required to submit the adopted draft for consultation and for 
consideration by the relevant Scrutiny before it is recommended to 
Council for adoption.  Further drafting amendments will be made to the 
plan up to the point it is submitted to Council.  The section headed 
“How we will Resource our Priorities” will be updated as part of this. 

 
11.6 The draft Corporate Plan is appended to this report. 
 
11.7 Further and fuller consultation will continue until the final Corporate 

Plan is brought back to Cabinet on 19th July.  
 
 
12.0 Access to Information 
 

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 
contacting the report writer.   

 
 
 
 
 
Name: Paul Bradshaw 
Designation: Head of HR & OD 
Tel No: 01270 686027 
Email: paul.bradshaw@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 1
Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan 

Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

P
a
g
e
 2

3



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Our Council, Our Services, Our Plan 

Page 2

Welcome from Wesley 

Fitzgerald, Leader, and Erika 

Wenzel, Chief Executive.

Welcome to our Corporate 

Plan for 2010 to 2013.
This plan sets how we will achieve our vision of:

We are very aware of the many issues that are affecting 

people’s lives at the moment. These are tough financial 

times, and this in turn can have devastating effects on 

individuals and communities alike. Our priorities and 

plans for the coming year are based firmly on what our 

communities want and what matters most to them. We 

will make sure that every penny of taxpayers’ money that 

is spent contributes to these priorities and plans so the 

benefits are clear to see.

We will also have to do more with less. Central Government 

has just announced significant cuts to funding available 

to councils and further cuts are anticipated. In order to 

meet these financial challenges, we have budgeted for 

savings of over £40 million over the three years (from 

April 2010 to March 2013). The creation of a new unitary 

council with leaner management systems has already 

made a significant contribution to our savings. 

There are many other challenges that face us over the 

coming years. These include a significant change in the 

make-up of our population, more people are living 

beyond their 80th birthday, with many requiring services 

from the council; fewer babies being born; increases in 

inflation; an increase in referrals in children’s social care 

and the effects of climate change to name just a few.

We know that the wide range of services we deliver has 

a huge impact on a lot of people, and you have our 

commitment that we will be working closely with many 

of you to make sure that we are delivering first-class 

services at the right time and in the right place so that 

Cheshire East is a great place to live, visit and work. 

Working together to 

improve community life 

Wesley Fitzgerald

Leader

Erika Wenzel 

Chief Executive

P
a

g
e
 2

4



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 3

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan
Cheshire East Council Corporate Plan 2010-2013

1. Introduction 4

2. Who We Are and What We Want to Achieve 7

3. What Cheshire East is Like Now 8

4. Working With Our Partners 14

5. How We Are Performing 16

6. Listening to You 18

7. Transforming Our Services 19

8. What We Want for the Future 20

9. How We Will Resource Our Priorities 22

10. Organising to Deliver 23

Corporate Objectives 26

Contacts and Further Information 30

Contents

P
a
g
e
 2

5



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 4

1. Introduction

Cheshire East – the place

Cheshire East is the third largest unitary 

authority in the North West and has 

around 360,000 residents. Our 

neighbours include North Staffordshire, 

Manchester, Cheshire West and Chester, 

Tra�ord and Warrington. First impressions 

of Cheshire East are often of leafy lanes 

and wealthy households. Indeed as an 

area we host 5% of the North West 

workforce and 7.5% of businesses in the 

North West are based here. This can hide 

the reality that it is a diverse area with 

many differences in income, employment 

and health. Figures that really show this 

include the life expectancy across the 

area. In areas of Knutsford the average 

life expectancy for a woman is 86, but in 

areas of Crewe it is 73 – a huge difference 

of 13 years. Household income also 

differs, ranging from an average of 

£60,000 in Wilmslow to £20,000 in Crewe.

Cheshire East Council has a responsibility 

to ensure that all our services meet these 

different needs and that the way its 

services are delivered across the area are 

developed and shaped to ensure that all 

who need them benefit from them. Our 

plan sets out how we will do this, who will 

be involved and how we will know if we 

have improved services for local people.

The Corporate Plan in the 

community context

Whilst the Council has statutory 

obligations to fulfil, regional priorities to 

consider, and National Indicators to 

measure important aspects of our 

performance, this plan is based on what 

our communities have told us they want 

and need. Through this community-

focused approach and working with our 

partners, we have developed a number 

of key targets and priorities. 

The Corporate Plan focuses specifically 

on what we as a council will do to 

improve your services and get better 

outcomes for local residents, businesses 

and visitors. It keeps a clear focus on 

what Cheshire East will deliver for local 

people and how we will play our part to 

create strong and prosperous 

communities.

Other local organisations, such as the 

Police, Fire and Rescue and the Primary 

Care Trust, have their own Corporate 

Plans that relate to outcomes for 

Cheshire East people. In addition, many 

local organisations work together with 

us to develop joint strategies and 

improvement plans, for example the 

Children and Young People’s Plan.

P
a

g
e
 2

6



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 5

SCS

Local Area

Agreement

Corporate Plan

Key Strategies & Plans

Service/Team/Individual Objectives

To turn our priorities into reality, we have 

developed departmental and service 

plans that will provide fuller detail about 

how the Corporate Plan will be delivered.

Our staff play a vital role in the successful 

delivery of these priorities and they, 

along with other key partners, have been 

asked for their contribution to setting 

out how we as a Council will work to 

improve local services.

We believe that excellent services can 

only be provided through fully engaged, 

satisfied and capable staff. We will work 

with staff to raise awareness of the 

priorities and to gain their input on 

outcomes and actions, including how 

services will contribute towards the 

achievement of the priorities. We will 

also consult with key stakeholders and 

partners.

The Corporate Plan will be updated each 

year to ensure that new priorities and 

objectives are included. This will mean 

that the Council will be able to respond 

to emerging issues and community views. 

Our Annual Performance Plan will clearly 

show how the Council performed against 

its priorities and how improvements for 

the future will be made.

Key Strategies and Plans 

consists of:

Local Development Framework, 

Local Transport Plan, Housing 

Strategy, Economic Development 

Strategy, Visitor Economy Strategy, 

Climate Change Strategy, Health 

Inequalities Strategy and Children 

and Young People’s Plan.

This diagram shows how the long-term vision for 

Cheshire East, set out in the Sustainable Community 

Strategy (SCS), links to the priorities contained in the 

Local Area Agreement, through our Corporate Plan 

objectives, and then through to the specific strategies 

and action plans right down to team and individual 

objectives. Each member of staff and each service area 

should be able to identify how their work contributes to 

the achievement of the Council’s corporate objectives 

and to the overall vision for Cheshire East in 2025.

P
a
g
e
 2

7



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 6

We are proud of our local area and feel a 

strong sense of responsibility towards 

its care. The beautiful diversity of the 

countryside, the rich cultural heritage 

and the character of the towns of Cheshire 

East provide a wonderful environment 

within which to live. From the dramatic 

scenery of the Peak District in the east to 

the open farmland and green spaces 

around the towns, people are never far 

from an area of natural beauty. 

2. Who We Are and What We Want to Achieve

Cheshire East Council provides services which are important to everyone in their daily lives . The Council 

maintains the roads, provides transport services, commissions school places and specialist support services 

for vulnerable children and their families, educates children, provides social care to elderly and vulnerable 

people, and looks after waste and recycling, to mention but a few.

Macclesfield and Crewe are our largest 

towns, with Wilmslow and Congleton 

also providing substantial town centres. 

Our smaller towns of Sandbach, Poynton, 

Nantwich, Middlewich, Knutsford and 

Alsager historically provided market 

centres for local people and continue to 

play an important role in local life. The 

strong communities that exist within 

these towns and in our rural areas provide 

Cheshire East with vibrancy and give 

people a sense of belonging. 

The Council wants to focus on the things 

that matter most to local people. We aim 

to make Cheshire East a thriving and 

vibrant place where people can enjoy a 

good quality of life and good health. This 

includes being able to learn and develop 

their skills and put them to good use in 

our local communities and further afield, 

with opportunities for everyone to fulfil 

their potential. Our thriving community 

should provide everyone with greater 

wealth to share, aiming for greater equality 

amongst its members in a range of ways. 

A flourishing business community is 

essential to sustaining this success. In 

addition, the Council aims to make our 

communities safer and stronger, and 

develop good local involvement in 

decision-making about local services, 

providing personal choice where 

appropriate. In short, we want: 

‘Cheshire East to be a great place 

to live, work, visit and enjoy.’

As a council we work closely with a range 

of partner organisations to help us achieve 

our ambitions, within the private, public, 

community and voluntary sectors. We 

believe this is important to ensure people 

receive integrated services that are good 

value for money.

Cheshire East Council is governed 

and guided by 81 councillors, with a 

Conservative majority. Together with 

talented and committed employees, our 

Council wants to deliver excellent services 

for, and with, the people of Cheshire East. 

This Corporate Plan sets out our ambitious 

plans for the next three years.

P
a

g
e
 2

8



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 7

3. What Cheshire East is Like Now

Cheshire East is already a great place in a range of ways:

Our communities are generally well-o�, 

with most people reporting a good 

quality of life 

Our children tend to do well at school, 

with levels of achievement above the 

national average 

The crime rate is one of the lowest in 

the country

Residents tend to enjoy better health 

than elsewhere in the region and 

nationally

Our strong economy contributes a large 

amount to the North West’s economic 

output, relative to our population size.

We want to celebrate these good stories, 

while recognising that the Council still has 

much work to do.

The population of Cheshire East is largely 

rural, with nearly 40% living in a rural 

location. There are a number of people in 

the area who experience a poorer quality 

of life in many respects, and they tend to 

be clustered within certain urban 

locations, many of which are centred in 

Crewe. The difference that exists 

between certain groups of our society 

presents a challenge for the Council – one 

that we aim to address in this Plan. The 

challenges are described within five 

themes. P
a
g
e
 2

9



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 8

The number of people aged over 65 has 

increased by 20% since 1991, and a much 

greater increase is predicted for the 

coming years (a 56% increase by 2027). 

By contrast, the number of children in 

Cheshire East is decreasing, with a 5% 

decline predicted over the same time.

This ageing of our population will result 

in a smaller working population combined 

with an increasing population of dependent 

older people, many of whom will be frail 

and dependent. Our social care workforce 

is rising to the challenge of redesigning 

services to deal with this change.

While overall health is good within 

Cheshire East, people have different 

experiences. Life expectancy varies from 

71.6 years (for males in Coppenhall East) 

to 93.3 years (for females in Wilmslow 

Town South East). In particular, we need 

to improve the prevention and care of 

coronary heart disease, lung cancer, 

chronic lung conditions and alcohol-

related liver cirrhosis.

Alcohol poses a significant health issue 

for Cheshire East, with levels of alcohol-

specific hospital admissions for males, 

females and under-18’s almost all 

significantly worse than the England 

average. Hazardous and binge drinking 

rates are also significantly worse. With 

such a strong link existing between alcohol 

and liver disease, a range of cancers and 

anti-social behaviour, reducing alcohol 

consumption is a significant challenge 

for the next few years.

Finally, while teen conceptions in Cheshire 

East are the third lowest in the North 

West, there are parts of the area where 

there are significantly high rates.

Cheshire East’s population pro�le is ageing dramatically. We have 

a population that is slightly older in make-up than that of England 

and Wales as a whole. 

Health and Wellbeing

P
a

g
e
 3

0



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 9

It is a significant challenge for us to 

ensure we respond well when children 

are referred to our services, completing 

assessments when appropriate and in a 

timely way, and providing good-quality 

care when needed. The number of 

children coming into the care of the 

Local Authority has increased over the 

preceding 15 months.

Cheshire East’s children generally tend to 

do well at school, and go on to further / 

higher education, employment, or 

training. However, children who are 

‘cared for’ tend to do significantly less 

well, in education and in other important 

areas. Another challenge is to ensure 

that children with special education 

needs, as well as children from a less 

advantaged background, have the 

opportunity to achieve at school.

One of our most important responsibilities is 

to ensure that children in Cheshire East are 

protected from abuse and neglect. 

Children and Young People 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 10

We will also encourage cycling and 

walking by developing infrastructure for 

these healthy and carbon-free methods 

of travel. With 79% of people travelling 

to work using their car, only 4% using 

public transport, and 14% walking or 

riding a bicycle, transport is an important 

area of work for the Council for the future.

The effects of the national and global 

economic recession have been felt 

strongly in Cheshire East. We have 

experienced a greater increase in 

unemployment than either the North 

West or the UK as a whole, with the 

number of claimants of Jobseeker’s 

Allowance in Cheshire East rising by 

118% between March 2009 and the 

same month in 2010. 

Although the number of claimants has 

fallen from its 2009 peak, it is still over 

6,500. We need to do more to help our 

unemployed residents find work and 

safeguard the jobs of those already in 

employment. We also need to support 

key industries and service sectors in 

Cheshire East that show a commitment 

to sustainable and responsible business 

growth. 

Cheshire East Council will continue to 

work to make life experiences, for 

people of Cheshire East, the same no 

matter where they live. This covers 

aspects of life such as income, health, 

crime and unemployment. While we 

generally perform well in supporting 

people on this, pockets of deprivation 

exist mainly in the Crewe area, with 

some existing elsewhere in Cheshire 

East including Handforth, Macclesfield 

and Congleton.

House prices in Cheshire East have not 

been affected by the economic 

recession as greatly as elsewhere in the 

North West. While they declined in 2008, 

this was at a lesser rate than for the 

region as a whole, and within the last 

year, house prices have begun to rise 

again, more quickly in Cheshire East 

than for the North West. With the 

average house costing £155,000 in 

Cheshire East (compared to £119,000 in 

the region overall), maintaining 

affordability of housing is a key issue 

for the Council.

Economy, Transport and Housing 

In order to reduce carbon emissions and alleviate the levels of tra�c on our roads, 

we will focus on localising and integrating our systems of public transport. 

P
a

g
e
 3

2



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 11

There is a lot of work to be done in 

improving energy e�ciency, 

encouraging the use of renewable 

sources of power, promoting small-scale 

electricity generation within local 

communities, and improving non-car 

transport options. This will not only assist 

us to reduce our carbon footprint, but also 

to improve our resilience for a lower-

energy future in which less carbon fuels 

will be available for power production.

The Council is no different, and so in 

addition to working with residents and 

businesses to reduce carbon emissions, 

we have also signed up to the 10:10 

challenge – we have committed to 

‘pulling out all the stops’ to reduce by 

10% the carbon footprint caused by our 

organisation during 2010. We have much 

work to do to meet this challenge.

Cheshire East residents are excellent at 

recycling domestic waste with rates of 

recycling continuing to rise to as high as 

50%. There is a limit, however, to how 

much of our waste can be recycled, and 

the challenge for the future relates to 

reducing the amount of waste produced 

overall, for example by using less 

packaging and reducing food waste. 

Another important environmental 

challenge is the ability for residents to 

produce their own food locally. Cheshire 

East is currently struggling to meet the 

demand for allotments, with substantial 

numbers of people on waiting lists. 

Providing people with space to grow their 

own food, and the development of local 

markets in the area will both be important 

as we rely less on internationally-traded, 

out-of-season-food.

The relationship between climate change and carbon emissions (from electricity production, the use of gas 

and vehicle use) is now quite widely accepted, and the people of Cheshire East are concerned about this 

issue. Collectively we do not perform well in this area – the average person’s domestic emissions of carbon 

dioxide being 2.6 tonnes per year, higher than both the North West and the UK �gures. 

Environment and Climate Change 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 12

Also, while a relatively low proportion of 

people in Cheshire East perceive anti-

social behaviour to be a problem, the 

issue identified in this area relates to 

teenagers hanging around on the streets. 

Our young people have expressed their 

concerns over a lack of facilities, with 

67% of respondents to the Young 

People’s Leisure Survey 2008/09 stating 

that they do not feel there is enough for 

them to do where they live. Providing 

activities and informing young people of 

what is available is a key area of work for 

the Council. 

Road safety is also an important issue. 

There were 1,288 traffic collisions 

involving casualties on our roads in 2006, 

which is less than in previous years. 

Unfortunately, though, the number of 

resulting fatalities and serious injuries is 

rising, reaching 26 and 252 respectively 

in 2006. There is much to be done in 

improving the safety of our roads in a 

range of ways.

Safer Communities

Our communities are relatively safe places to live, with signi�cantly 

lower rates of crime than in the North-West or England and Wales. 

P
a

g
e
 3

4



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 13

Cheshire East Strategic 

Partnership Executive

Nantwich Crewe Congleton Maccles�eld Poynton Wilmslow Knutsford

Safer Cheshire East 

Partnership
Children’s Trust Health & Wellbeing

Economic 

Development, 

Learning & Skills

Environment & 

Sustainability

Thematic Groups

Local Area Partnerships (LAPs)

Neighbourhood & Community Partnerships

Working in partnership enables more 

effective use of public money through a 

shared understanding of the needs and 

issues in Cheshire East and co-ordinated 

provision of services. This joint approach 

has never been more important than in 

the current economic climate where 

public funds are reducing but expectations 

on services are quite rightly not.

The aims and ambitions of our corporate 

plan cannot become a reality without the 

support of our partners. They play a vital 

part in shaping, developing and, in many 

cases, helping us to deliver �rst-class local 

services. This partnership sets the vision 

and priorities for the area, ensuring that 

different initiatives and services support 

each other and work together across 

Cheshire East. The structure of the Local 

Strategic Partnership is shown in the 

diagram (right):

Partners on the Local Strategic Partnership 

Executive Board include the Cheshire 

Constabulary, the Cheshire Fire and Rescue 

Service, the Central and Eastern Cheshire 

Primary Care Trust, the South Cheshire 

Chamber, the Cheshire East Housing 

Delivery Partnership, MMU Cheshire 

(Manchester Metropolitan University), 

and the Cheshire East voluntary sector. 

4. Working With Our Partners

Partners work together through the Cheshire East Local Strategic Partnership which aims to improve 

quality of life for residents, to support business and to enhance Cheshire East as a visitor destination. 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 14

Partnership delivery is organised through five thematic 

partnerships:

The Safer Cheshire East Partnership

The Children’s Trust

The Health and Well-being Partnership

The Economic Development, Learning and Skills 

Partnership

The Environment and Sustainability Partnerhsip.

The Local Strategic Partnership has also established 

seven Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) covering the areas 

of Congleton, Crewe, Knutsford, Macclesfield, Nantwich, 

Poynton and Wilmslow. Their role is to improve services, 

ensure local people influence decision-making and to 

actively engage and empower communities. LAPs bring 

together a wider range of people from statutory, 

voluntary and community sectors. By working together 

at a local level, they focus collective action on what 

really matters, delivering improved outcomes for local 

people and places.

Over recent months the Local Strategic Partnership has 

developed the �rst Cheshire East Sustainable Community 

Strategy which sets out a clear vision for the next 15 

years which is:

Cheshire East is a prosperous place where all 

people can achieve their potential, regardless 

of where they live. We have beautiful 

countryside, unique towns with individual 

character and a wealth of history and culture. 

The people of Cheshire East live active and 

healthy lives and get involved in making their 

communities safe and sustainable places to live.

All partners have a collective responsibility to deliver 

the Sustainable Community Strategy, to overcome 

many of the challenges described earlier in this 

document. The strategy identifies seven priorities for 

immediate action which will enable us to achieve our 

vision. These are:

Nurture strong communities 

Create conditions for business growth 

Unlock the potential of our towns 

Support our children and young people 

Ensure a sustainable future

Prepare for an increasingly older population 

Drive out causes of poor health. 

We have also developed a Local Area Agreement with 

our partners which identifies specific improvement 

targets for local priorities. A lead partner has been 

identified for each priority and they take responsibility 

for co-ordinating relevant actions and progress in 

achieving targets. 

By bringing a range of public, private and voluntary 

partners together to plan programmes and services, 

prioritise needs and manage delivery, we are ensuring 

that important connections are made and services are 

properly integrated. We are also ensuring that we 

minimise duplication, and are able to put our collective 

resources to best effect. 

Some key examples of how partnership working plays 

out in practice can be seen in the next section, where 

we discuss our performance.

P
a

g
e
 3

6



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 15

5. How We Are Performing

It is important that we have a realistic view of how council services 

are being delivered: for instance what we are doing well and want to 

continue to do well; and where we are not fully addressing particular 

challenges and need to do further work. 

We are committed to ensuring that our 

Council does its job well, and responds 

to local people and the evidence we 

collect about the performance of our 

services. We are also committed to our 

performance plans and the current state 

of our performance being transparent 

and open to the public and other 

interested parties.

Given the newness of the Council and 

also how the Government inspects and 

rates councils, we have not yet had an 

independent view of our performance. 

We are expecting this later this year. As a 

council, we are committed to improving 

and have gathered our own evidence so 

that we can look at our performance 

since April 2009 and make any necessary 

changes for improvement. From this we 

will know what is going well and what 

we need to improve. Some key examples 

are shown in the next section.

What’s going well?

The following are just a few examples of 

our recent achievements:

During our first year, we have made 

£25 million of savings that have been 

reinvested in priority areas across the 

Council, such as children’s services.

Health and well-being – we have seen 

a 27% increase in children and young 

people swimming and an 89% increase 

in people over 60 swimming, as a 

result of the Council’s support of the 

free swimming scheme. Cheshire East 

is currently ranked 11th out of 253 

participating authorities in terms of 

the number of swims taken.

Improving parks and green spaces – 

the refurbishment of Queen’s Park in 

Crewe is progressing well, with new 

bridges installed, a bandstand restored, 

and lake works completed. This £6.5 

million project is now set to transform 

the park, with a £2.78 million contribution 

from the Heritage Lottery Fund. 

Improving schools – Significant 

increase over the past 12 months in 

the number of schools and early years 

settings judged good or better in 

OFSTED inspections.

Successfully conducted a pilot of a 

scheme to provide 10 hours of free 

childcare per week to most 

disadvantaged two-year-olds.

Supporting independence – our 

Services for Adults are using a new 

model for supporting people, in 

particular those who are elderly, to live 

independently in their homes, and 

providing support for carers. A new 

approach is being made to providing 

equipment, information, advice and 

support, including providing people 

with personal choice of the services 

they want.

Reducing offending – the Safer 

Cheshire East Partnership has set up 

the Priority and other Prolific Offender 

(PPO) team, resulting in a massive 

reduction in offending rates. The team 

involves a number of partner agencies, 

reducing duplication and improving 

risk management.

Tackling domestic abuse – the 

Cheshire Domestic Abuse Partnership 

has implemented a best-practice 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 16

model to tackle domestic abuse, 

termed the Coordinated Community 

Response. This provides support for 

survivors, increased accountability for 

perpetrators and voluntary change 

programmes. Again, many partner 

organisations are involved.

Transformation of Building Control 

Services – electronically-based 

systems now allow the customer to 

view drawings and submit applications 

online, as well as providing big 

efficiencies in departmental working.

Supporting businesses and local 

people through the recession – we 

have supported town centres through 

dressing empty shop windows with 

vibrant displays; increased the take-up 

of benefits available from Government 

by £1m; and supported businesses 

through clinics and seminars on local 

procurement.

Providing choice in housing – we have 

launched Cheshire Homechoice, a new 

choice-based lettings system that 

allows new and existing customers to 

apply for housing vacancies which are 

advertised widely across Cheshire East. 

This is a new way of allocating 

housing, avoiding the traditional 

waiting list approach

Improving community safety – our 

team of Community Wardens has 

achieved the Community Safety 

Accredited Person’s Certificate from 

Cheshire Constabulary. This means 

that they are now accredited with a 

range of new powers to tackle crime 

and anti-social behaviour.

Some key areas we need to 

improve on

We need to improve our planning 

service to make it more efficient and 

customer-friendly. We are radically 

changing how we do business in this 

key area to ensure value for money 

and simplify our systems.

We are working hard to harmonise the 

way in which we collect and manage 

household waste across Cheshire East 

to move away from three approaches 

inherited from the previous Councils 

into a simplified, cost-effective service.

We will place more emphasis on the 

assessment of carers and provision of 

information, advice and support where 

this will help them to maintain their 

support for their loved one and 

achieve a good quality of life for 

themselves.

We will place more emphasis on 

linking people with social care needs 

and their carers to resources and 

opportunities in their local 

communities, consistent with 

supporting their position as citizens of 

Cheshire East able to access the same 

resources and facilities as others.

Improving our ability to respond 

earlier to the identified needs of 

vulnerable children, young people and 

their families.

Address underachievement in our 

High Schools, where it exists.

Improve outcomes for children cared 

for by the Local Authority.

Continue to strengthen our 

arrangements for safeguarding 

children.

P
a

g
e
 3

8



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 17

6. Listening to You

As we have said, fundamental to 

setting our priorities and improving 

our services is listening to you, 

acting on what you say, and 

regularly checking your feedback 

about outcomes. 

These are the Audlem area, the Plumley 

area, and the Congleton and Macclesfield 

border parishes. Plans for these sites are 

now proceeding through the planning 

application process. The 2010 Southern 

Parishes Survey is underway and we are 

already able to identify some potential 

development sites. 

Budget consultation

We consulted widely across the Borough 

when setting the budget for 2010/11. We 

held meetings in Nantwich, Congleton 

and Knutsford, receiving 100 responses. 

As a result, we were able to identify 

where respondents felt more money 

should be spent, where less money 

should be spent, and where spending 

levels should not change, providing 

useful clarification on where the 

priorities of our communities lay and 

where our resources should be focussed. 

Most people were prepared to pay an 

increase of 1% to 2% in their Council Tax 

rate, in order to fund services. Taking 

account of the views of the people of 

Cheshire East, the increase for 2010/11 

was set at 1.7%.

We do know that as a relatively new 

organisation, the task of consulting, 

listening, responding and checking is a 

work in progress, We are committed to 

getting this right and the Local Area 

Partnerships that have been set up are vital 

in helping us with this task at a local level. 

We will work hard to improve our methods 

of communicating and consulting with 

local people and our partners. We are 

keen to ensure that everyone who lives 

or works in our community has a voice 

and is able to make their thoughts, 

aspirations and concerns heard.

Examples of key projects currently 

underway as a result of what the people 

of Cheshire East have told us include:

Rural Housing Needs surveys

Cheshire East and previously Cheshire 

County Council, conducted a number of 

rural housing needs surveys over the 

past two years. These surveys have 

highlighted the need for affordable 

housing in almost all of the locations 

included. The information gathered 

during this consultation also identified 

sites around Cheshire East that were 

suitable for development. 

P
a
g
e
 3

9



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 18

Key to driving the improvement of our 

services and doing more with less will be 

our transformational approach to service 

delivery. This plan discusses how we will 

provide better value for money, focus on 

core services, and work well with 

partners. It also explores how we will 

ensure services are more responsive to 

individual and local needs, eradicate 

waste and inefficiency, and ultimately 

improve overall performance. We 

recognise the need to radically review 

our approach, in partnership with other 

organisations, to achieve these things.

Our plans as to how we can achieve this 

are laid out in our corporate 

Transformation Programme. Traditional 

approaches no longer meet user needs 

effectively, and demand for services is 

changing and rising rapidly which means 

significant financial challenges. It is clear 

to the Council that in rethinking our 

approach in these areas, much more can 

be done to achieve our priorities, often 

for less cost. 

The current programme includes a major 

redesign of services for children, adults, 

health and well-being and transport, and 

a huge amount has been achieved so far. 

For example, in Adult Services we have 

achieved significant savings by 

eliminating duplicated efforts, and 

providing integrated services with health 

partners. We have already invested and 

made improvements in safeguarding, 

preventative and re-ablement services 

– keeping people safe, independent and 

well for as long as possible.

The Transformation Programme is 

dynamic and is regularly reviewed, 

taking into account our performance, 

local needs and views, budget 

constraints and national guidance. It 

plays a key role in helping to shape and 

deliver the objectives within this 

Corporate Plan and individual service 

plans, working within the Council’s 

emerging financial scenario. For the 

future, we will focus on improving 

services at a local level and examining 

which services might be better delivered 

by other agencies and partners.

7. Transforming Our Services

P
a

g
e
 4

0



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 19

8. What We Want for the Future 

We want to make Cheshire East a place that people 

choose to live in, work in and visit. We want it to be a 

place that people say good things about, which has a 

great range of things to do, is a great place to live, a 

place where people feel happy and successful with 

fantastic open spaces and that is run by an excellent 

council.

We are committed to making this happen and are 

carefully planning our priorities to make sure it does and 

have set ourselves rightly ambitious corporate 

objectives. These objectives will be the basis upon 

which departmental and service plans are written and 

will form a fundamental part of every day life for all staff 

working within the Council. We will make sure that 

everything that we do as a council contributes towards 

making Cheshire East ‘the’ place. 

A summary of the objectives is set out below, the full 

objectives can be found in Appendix 1.

We want to make 

Cheshire East a place 

that is talked about for 

all the right reasons! 

Corporate objective one: 

To give the people of Cheshire East 

more choice and control around 

services and resources

We want all people in Cheshire East to 

have more choices and access locally to 

good information. We will develop new 

ways of working, be honest about what 

the Council can offer and help people 

when they want that help. We will draw 

upon people’s experiences and ideas and 

help them to play a much bigger part in 

informing plans for future services.

Corporate objective two: 

To grow and develop a sustainable 

Cheshire East

We want to ensure the right environment 

for businesses to grow. We will provide 

business support, plan for the needs of 

future generations and provide 

employment and public services where 

people need them. We will work with our 

partners across the public sector to 

increase aspirations and realise the 

potential of all our community. We will 

provide transport solutions, support 

cultural projects and revitalise town 

centres. We will increase the number of 

visitors to Cheshire East through 

marketing our towns and major 

attractions.

P
a
g
e
 4

1



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 20

Corporate objective three: 

To improve life opportunities and 

health for everybody in Cheshire East

We want people in Cheshire East to make 

more healthy-eating choices and 

healthier lifestyle choices. We will 

encourage higher aspirations on the part 

of children, young people and their 

families and we will work to reduce the 

differences which currently exist in both 

opportunities and health in areas across 

Cheshire East. We will work to ensure 

better outcomes in life for those who are 

most vulnerable and to build a solid 

foundation for future prosperity through 

the development of a strong and skilled 

workforce.

Corporate objective four: 

To enhance the Cheshire East 

environment 

We will provide clean and well-maintained 

streets, public spaces and protect our 

heritage, natural and recreational 

environment for the benefit of local 

communities. We will tackle the effects of 

climate change and deliver a sustainable 

solution to waste across Cheshire East. We 

will continue to maintain and improve 

conditions for the use of all users, and in 

particular, focus on reducing the number 

of road traffic accidents.

Corporate objective five: 

To be an excellent council and work 

with others – to deliver for Cheshire 

East

We will focus on core services that best 

meet the needs and aspirations of local 

people and communities. We will work to 

ensure that services and priorities are 

properly resourced and successfully 

managed within budget. As part of this, 

we will ensure that the overall increase in 

Council Tax does not exceed inflation 

and is below inflation where possible 

each year. We will work to deliver 

services fit for the 21st century.

Delivering the objectives will be a 

challenge but one we will rise to and 

achieve. We will be constantly looking at 

our performance and ensuring that we 

are always working towards our objectives 

and making changes and improvements 

to make sure we make them a reality. We 

know that we will have to make difficult 

decisions, but we will make them and be 

very clear about why we have made them 

and how they will contribute to our 

objectives. We will be publishing our 

service plans so that you can see in greater 

detail the daily work that we will be 

doing to move this forward, how this 

work contributes to our objectives and 

what difference we are making. 

P
a

g
e
 4

2



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 21

9. How We Will Resource Our Priorities

Despite lower levels of funding 

from central government than other 

comparable councils, we are pleased 

that we still provide good value services. 

Lower government funding obviously 

has an impact on our finances, with 

spending per head of population 

in Cheshire East being estimated at 

£1,368, compared to £1,598 per head in 

comparable councils – some 14% less. 

The Council operates a rolling three-

year Business Planning process which 

enables the Council to take account 

of the needs of the community, set 

priorities and allocate the budget to 

deliver them. £422m of the Council’s 

funding is provided for specific purposes. 

In 2010 the balance of funding has been 

allocated by the Council as shown in 

Figure 1 (top right).

It is predicted that inflation will rise over 

the next three years but our budget will 

rise at a lower rate. During the period, 

funding levels from government are 

also expected to decrease. This makes it 

increasingly important that the Council 

allocates its own resources to priority 

spending areas.

Whilst spending across the Council 

will increase overall, our priority areas 

will benefit the greatest. These will be 

caring for children, caring for adults, 

the road network and housing. These 

will be funded by taking resources away 

from lower priority services such as 

the Council’s support functions. Figure 

2 (bottom right) demonstrates the 

changes in local funding that the Council 

will make by 2012/2013. This reflects the 

impact of policy options to recognise 

and protect priority areas and responds 

to our budget consultation meetings 

with the public.

In social care provision there is a 

successful transformation programme 

underway to improve outcomes within a 

challenging budget. This has contributed 

to delivering the Putting People 

First priorities, notably prevention, 

personalisation and a ‘whole-system’ 

response to social care need.

Cheshire East Council spends over £713m a year on 

delivering services to local people. 

Guide to services

Support Service Areas:

includes finance, IT, HR

Learning and Social Care:

includes further education, 

lifelong learning, schools

Social Care Provision:

includes health advice, family based 

care, services for disabled people

Places:

includes waste, highways

Key

Learning and Social Care

Support Service Areas

Places

Social Care Provision

Source: Cheshire East Financial Scenario

Figure 1 

Council spending 2010/11

£57m £55m

£76m
£103m

Figure 2 

% Changes to local 

funding by 2012/13

-1.9% +5.1%

-0.1%
+3.0%

P
a
g
e
 4

3



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 22

Council Leadership and Cabinet

Cheshire East Council has appointed a 

Leader and a Cabinet to make strategic 

decisions for the organisation. Cabinet 

meets once a month, and their meetings 

are open to the public, with time being 

made available for members of thepublic 

to speak.

Each Cabinet member has their own 

portfolio responsibilities, and act as 

champions for key issues. They work 

closely with managers to ensure we 

perform well as a council.

In addition to the Leader of the Council, 

Cabinet is made up of members with the 

following portfolio responsibilities:

Safer and Stronger Communities

Resources

Health and Well-being

Environmental Services

Performance and Capacity

Procurement, Assets and Shared 

Services

Adult Services

Children and Family Services

Prosperity.

Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

We recognise how important it is that the 

administration of your services is 

challenged and suggestions made for 

their improvement. Our five Overview 

and Scrutiny Committees involve 58 

council members and ensure that the 

Council is being run efficiently and 

effectively. Again, you are welcome to 

attend these meetings, which occur ten 

times per year. The five committees are:

Children and Families

Environment and Prosperity

Sustainable Communities

Corporate

Health and Adult Social Care.

Elected members

Cheshire East’s 27 wards are represented 

by 81 councillors. The role of these 

elected members is to reflect the views, 

and pursue the interests, of the 

communities that they represent. 

The full council meets six times per year, 

and is responsible for setting the overall 

policy directions and the budget.

Through these council meetings, we 

make sure that the concerns and 

10. Organising to Deliver

suggestions that councillors bring from 

their communities are properly 

considered and acted upon. We also 

make sure that our councillors are 

properly supported in their work with 

their communities, providing tools and 

expertise to make a real difference to 

their area.

The full council appoints committees to 

deal with statutory decisions on 

planning, licensing and regulatory 

matters. There is also a Standards 

Committee which ensures the probity of 

our operations. 

P
a

g
e
 4

4



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 23

Managing the Council 

Our Corporate Management Team is led 

by the Council’s Chief Executive, and 

includes:

Strategic Director, Places

Director, Adults and Community 

Health

Director, Children and Families

Head of Human Resources and 

Organisational Development

Head of Policy and Performance

Head of Service Improvement

Borough Treasurer and Head of Assets

Borough Solicitor (Monitoring Officer).

The Corporate Management Team is 

responsible for ensuring that our 

corporate objectives are met and that 

the right priorities are set to make this 

happen. They will listen to the feedback 

from partners, local people and 

communities, set the priorities and then 

allocate the tasks to colleagues across 

the Council. They will work closely with 

Cabinet and provide information and 

advice where needed. 

Managing our performance and risks

In order to deliver the improvements 

that we detail in this plan, we have 

robust performance monitoring and 

management arrangements in place. 

These involve the regular review of the 

Council’s key priorities and projects, 

along with the setting of clear targets 

and actions for staff. This gives the strong 

evidence to demonstrate our 

improvements and to highlight areas 

that require attention. 

In managing our risks, through using an 

effective risk management framework, 

we aim to add value by improving 

decision-making, planning and 

prioritisation. This contributes to a more 

efficient use of resources and optimises 

our performance and delivery.

Good management of our performance 

will involve setting clear objectives, 

developing robust service plans, 

reporting progress to Corporate 

Management Team and Cabinet and 

reviewing and updating our plans 

according to developments.

Working for Cheshire East

We want Cheshire East Council to be well 

respected in our community, with 

councillors viewed as community 

leaders, and members of staff, many who 

live in the local area, feeling proud of the 

Council and acting as its ambassadors. 

Our staff survey, carried out in 

September 2009, told us that our staff 

are generally satisfied with their jobs, 

that they feel they achieve something 

worthwhile at work and that team work 

and working with others is critical to 

success. A third of employees would 

speak highly of the Council if asked, 

whilst most other staff preferred to 

remain “neutral” in opinion at this stage 

in the Council’s development.

Our reputation depends very much upon 

how each of us interacts with our clients, 

citizens, colleagues and partners. We are 

committed to investing in, and 

developing our staff, and building a 

positive and constructive organisational 

culture and values.

P
a
g
e
 4

5



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 24

Our values – ASPIRE

Our core values reflect our aspirations for 

both our culture and our standards for 

serving the people of Cheshire East and 

we strive to demonstrate these values in 

all that we do:

Action  - take responsibility for 

making the right things 

happen

Support - work and learn together 

in order to succeed

People - put customer and 

community needs at the 

heart of what we do

Integrity - be open, honest and fair, 

expecting the same of 

others

Recognition - value all views, efforts 

and achievements

Excellence - strive to improve all that 

we do

Equality and inclusion

Cheshire East is committed to providing 

high-quality, customer-focused services 

for all people living in, working in or 

visiting the area. Promoting fairness and 

providing equality and inclusion is one of 

our important values, and relates to:

Accessing the Council’s services

Accessing employment opportunities 

with the Council, or with its 

contractors who supply goods or 

services to the Council

Accessing voluntary work supported 

by the Council

Developing policies and plans that 

impact upon communities and 

individuals.

We are determined to develop further 

our equality and inclusion agenda to 

provide quality customer services, meet 

our statutory responsibilities, and as part 

of the achievement of our corporate aims 

and objectives. Our aim is to deliver 

inclusion for all.

P
a

g
e
 4

6



Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Your Council, Your Services, Your Plan

Page 25

Cheshire East Council 

Corporate Plan 2010-2013
Appendix 1

P
a
g
e
 4

7



What do we want to achieve?

We want all people in Cheshire East to 

have more choices about the help they 

receive and greater control over the 

resources which are available to help 

them.

To achieve this we want to ensure that 

people have access locally to good 

information, advice and guidance about 

our services and those of others.

We want to develop new ways of 

working with people who turn to us for 

help. We want to work alongside people, 

listening to what they think they need, 

being honest about what the Council can 

o�er and helping them, when they want 

that help, to work out tailor-made ways 

of meeting those needs.

We want to draw upon people’s 

experiences and ideas, helping them to 

play a much bigger part in designing 

services for themselves, in running local 

services, if they are interested in doing 

that, and in informing plans for future 

services.

Cheshire East has a 
great range of things 
to do and places to 
go for everyone.

What will we do to achieve our 

ambition?

Continue the work we have started to 

redesign Social Care Services so that 

more people can be given cash in 

hand rather than services, if they are 

comfortable with that approach

Get service providers, both our own 

and those of other agencies, to 

re-think what they offer and make 

services ever more relevant to the 

needs of local people

Strengthen the abilities of people to 

tackle their own problems, while 

intervening earlier ourselves when we 

are clear that our intervention really is 

needed

Support the development of local 

decision-making and service delivery 

in our communities

Encourage activity on the part of local 

volunteers and organisation

Increase the take-up of cultural, leisure 

and sport services.

Corporate Objective One

How will we know if we have been 

successful?

A steadily increasing number of 

people will be getting direct cash 

payments and making their own 

decisions about how to use the money 

to improve their lives

The monitoring of our Access Points 

will show that an increased number of 

people are getting the information, 

advice and guidance which they need

Informal carers will routinely and 

consistently be offered a separate 

assessment of their needs and that 

information will be used in the 

commissioning of services

As an employer, the Council will have 

recruited a greater number of disabled 

people into its workforce

Where local people want to take on 

the running of services and facilities, 

those services and facilities will have 

been passed into their hands.

To give the people of Cheshire East more choice and control about services and resources

As a result of this work, 

we want people to say:

P
a

g
e
 4

8



What do we want to achieve?

We want to ensure the right environment 

for businesses to grow through: 

providing access to business support; 

developing a skilled workforce; providing 

land for new homes and new commercial 

development; and securing resources to 

build strong transport and digital links 

across the Borough.

Its important that we plan for the needs 

of future generations and provide 

employment and public services where 

people need them. We will work with our 

partners across the public sector to 

deliver investment in schools, leisure 

facilities and young people centres to 

increase aspirations and realise the 

potential of all our community.

We will provide transport solutions 

which are safe, accessible and enable 

social mobility of our most vulnerable 

communities and focus on increasing 

independence, flexibility and choice.

We want to celebrate the distinctiveness 

of all our towns and villages by 

supporting cultural projects and 

revitalising town centres. We will 

increase the number of visitors to Cheshire 

East through marketing our towns and 

major attractions such as Tatton Park. 

Cheshire East is a 
great place to live, 
where we can make 
real choices around 
housing, jobs and 
where to enjoy our 
leisure time, whilst 
feeling safe in our 
communities.

What will we do to achieve our 

ambition?

Deliver a new Local Development 

Framework and Local Transport Plan, 

Local Economic Assessment and 

Housing Strategy which provide for 

future growth and prosperity of 

Cheshire East

Work with employers through our 

Business Engagement Framework to 

ensure the Council is listening to their 

needs and remodel our Regulatory 

Services to balance protection with 

support

Working with local partners, we will 

celebrate and support the 

distinctiveness of all our market towns 

and develop joint action plans to 

support their future

Working with local partners, promote 

major regeneration in our key towns of 

Macclesfield and Crewe through 

delivery of the respective business 

plans

Transform our Development 

Management service to deliver an 

efficient, customer-facing approach

Develop a parking strategy across the 

area which addresses local issues 

Maximise developer contributions to 

improve infrastructure, culture, leisure 

and green spaces.

How will we know if we have been 

successful?

Our Local Development Framework 

and Local Transport Plan will reflect 

the priorities of the Sustainable 

Community Strategy and the needs of 

businesses

The economy of Cheshire East will 

continue to grow above the rate of 

growth across the North West 

Our market towns will thrive and 

prosper, supported by strong local 

partnership arrangements

The Council will increase performance 

in key service areas whilst reducing 

costs such as development 

management and highways and 

transport

The number of affordable homes 

available across the area will exceed 

current targets. The number of empty 

homes brought back into use will 

increase and provide an additional 

supply of housing in the Borough

The value of the visitor economy to 

Cheshire East will exceed £700m per 

annum

The levels of young people who are 

positively engaged in education, 

employment and training is high and 

they report positively on the 

opportunities and experience.

Corporate Objective Two
To grow and develop a sustainable Cheshire East

As a result of this work, 

we want people to say:

P
a
g
e
 4

9



What do we want to achieve?

We want people in Cheshire East to make 

more healthy eating choices and healthier 

lifestyle choices.

We want to see higher aspirations on the 

part of children, young people and their 

families about what they can achieve in 

their lives.

We want to see some narrowing of the 

gap which currently exists in both 

opportunities and health between those 

who are most successful in Cheshire East 

and those who are most challenged in 

their lives.

We want better outcomes in life for those 

who are most vulnerable, particularly our 

cared for children, unpaid carers and 

minority groups.

We want a solid foundation laid for future 

prosperity through the development of a 

strong and skilled workforce.

I feel happier, 
healthier and 
more successful 
than before

What will we do to achieve our 

ambition?

Target action towards those schools 

and colleges where levels of attainment 

are not as high as they should be

Develop and implement a plan for 

tackling health inequalities in Cheshire 

East

Focus resources most sharply upon our 

more deprived and challenged 

communities, to raise aspirations and 

address unemployment

Work positively with partners to 

ensure that there are joined-up 

approaches to tackling problems – for 

example, childhood obesity

Raise awareness about alcohol misuse 

and pursue priority actions to address 

that problem within Cheshire East

Work across the Council to ensure that 

the Council itself provides more 

employment opportunities for 

vulnerable and disabled people

Through a clear strategy, target our 

Health and Well-being Services much 

more towards groups and 

communities most in need of that sort 

of intervention.

How will we know if we have been 

successful?

We will have seen, within the whole 

clientele of those using leisure and 

cultural services, a shift in the balance 

between the general public and those 

specifically referred, either by 

themselves or by others in order to 

address particular health and well-

being challenges

The implementation of a whole system 

plan for reducing the harm caused by 

alcohol abuse will have helped more 

people to reduce their drinking to safe 

levels and will have consequently 

reduced the calls upon the NHS and 

other services which arise from alcohol 

harm

Schools which are not doing well or 

which are just coasting will have 

improved their performance, so that 

all become either good or outstanding

A greater proportion of our school 

leavers are engaged in work, training 

or further education of some sort

A significant reduction has been made 

in the most extreme of the health 

equalities, and, in particular, for older 

people more of their remaining years 

are healthy years

Progress will have been made in 

putting in place a comprehensive 

pattern of specialist provision for 

people with dementia and their carers

The Children Trust will have shifted the 

whole system for children and families, 

so that interventions are made much 

earlier, when problems become 

apparent.

Children who are cared for by the 

Council will achieve far better at 

school, and a much greater proportion 

of them will progress from school into 

worthwhile, paid employment.

Corporate Objective Three
To improve life opportunities and health for everybody in Cheshire East

As a result of this work, 

we want people to say:

P
a

g
e
 5

0



What do we want to achieve?

We believe in taking a responsible 

approach to enhancing and nurturing 

our environment. We will provide clean 

and well maintained streets, public 

spaces and protect our heritage, natural 

and recreational environment for the 

benefit of local communities.

We will tackle the e�ects of climate 

change through a comprehensive 

approach to reducing carbon emissions 

and promoting sustainable approaches.

We will also deliver a sustainable solution 

to waste across Cheshire East by 

increasing the levels of recycling and 

providing a long-term arrangement for 

the management of residual waste.

The condition of our roads is important 

for local businesses and communities. 

We will continue to maintain and 

improve our roads with particular focus 

on reducing the number of road traffic 

accidents.

We have a fantastic 
environment across 
Cheshire East. 
Public spaces and 
recreational areas 
are well maintained 
and our heritage and 
natural environment 
is protected and 
nurtured by the Council

What will we do to achieve our 

ambition?

Continue to work with our local 

partners in the police, fire and rescue 

service to promote road safety and 

reduce casualty levels across Cheshire 

East

Deliver our ‘Total Transport’ 

transformation programme which will 

provide a more efficient approach 

delivering highways and transport 

services

Deliver the Cheshire East Waste 

Strategy including providing a new 

residual waste facility through PFI and 

a harmonised approach to waste 

across the area

Continue to promote recycling and 

reduction of waste through a major 

‘Love Food Hate Waste’ marketing 

campaign

Achieve and increase existing level of 

Green Flags in our Greenspace sites 

Develop and deliver a Carbon 

Management Plan for Cheshire East 

which sets targets for reducing carbon 

emissions.

How will we know if we have been 

successful?

Customer satisfaction in key areas such 

as street cleansing and waste 

management will have increased and 

the services will be operating more 

efficiently

Highway condition will be maintained 

on main routes despite recent winter 

damage and expected reduced 

investment from Government

Casualties from road accidents will 

continue to fall in areas where 

targeted support has been provided

We have achieved and increased the 

existing level of Green Flags in our 

Greenspace sites 

Carbon emissions from the Council will 

have reduced and the Council will be 

respected as a leading example across 

the Borough on climate change issues.

Corporate Objective Four
To enhance the Cheshire East environment

As a result of this work, 

we want people to say: P
a
g
e
 5

1



What do we want to achieve?

In Cheshire East we want to be clear 

about the services local people and 

communities want from the Council and 

our partners. This will enable the Council 

to focus on core services that best meet 

the needs and aspirations of local people 

and communities, along with whether 

those services can be best delivered 

directly or in partnership with other 

organisations, including Town and Parish 

Councils. In this way, we will see the 

number and scope of services being 

delivered by our partners increase. 

Key to what we can achieve will be our 

challenging �nances. We will therefore 

carefully and strategically plan so that 

our services and priorities are properly 

resourced and successfully managed 

within budget. As part of this, we will 

ensure that the overall increase in 

Council Tax does not exceed inflation 

and is below inflation where possible 

each year.

So that we can deliver services fit for the 

21st century, we will develop a multi-

skilled workforce, which is flexible, 

competent and capable. 

The Council is very 
well managed and 
uses its resources 
e�ectively in 
supporting the  
key changes and 
improvements 
we want to see in 
Cheshire East.

What will we do to achieve our 

ambition?

Improve how we communicate with 

our residents and our towns and 

parishes to fully understand the needs 

and aspirations of our communities

Improve access to services for all 

Cheshire East areas, in particular rural 

communities

Increase the ability of all residents to 

live independently for longer through 

the transformation of services and the 

effective use of technology 

Develop a flexible and skilled 

workforce that can support and 

respond to how we deliver services

Further develop robust financial 

planning and use limited resources 

imaginatively and e�ectively

Regularly review whether each service 

is providing value for money

Focus on our core services and 

priorities and optimise working in 

partnership where this improves 

services or makes better use of public 

resources.

How will we know if we have been 

successful?

Our local people and communities will 

say that the Council provides excellent 

services and uses its resources well in 

doing so

Council Tax rises will be at or below 

inflation

The Government will rate us as good 

and improving over years one and two 

and excellent by year three 

We will deliver value for money 

services within budget each year

Employee satisfaction and 

engagement levels will increase each 

time we hold an employee survey 

We will have increased the number 

and scope of council services delivered 

with or by our partners / local 

communities each year.

Corporate Objective Five
Being an excellent Council and working with others – to deliver for Cheshire East

As a result of this work, 

we want people to say:

P
a

g
e
 5

2



Contacts and Further Information

27

5

15

26

26

322

1

7

6

14

20 23

13

12

11
10

9

8

25

24

19

2

16

4

18
17

Unitary Wards in Cheshire East

1. Alderley

2. Alsager

3. Bollington and Disley

4. Broken Cross

5. Bucklow

6. Cholmondeley

7. Congleton Rural

8. Congleton Town East

9. Congleton Town West

10. Crewe East

11. Crewe North

12. Crewe South

13. Crewe West

14. Doddington

15. Knutsford

16. Maccles�eld Forest

17. Maccles�eld Town

18. Maccles�eld West

19. Middlewich

20. Nantwich

21. Poynton

22. Prestbury and Tytherington

23. Rope

24. Sandbach

25. Sandbach East and Rode

26. Wilmslow North

27. Wilmslow South

This Plan provides a summary of our vision, our corporate objectives and our 

immediate priorities. If you would like further information about our services, please 

visit our website at www.cheshireeast.gov.uk or contact us on 01270 686 016 or 

alternatively visit us at the address below.

If you would like additional copies of this Plan, or if you have any queries, please contact;

Vivienne Quayle, Head of Policy and Performance

Cheshire East Council

Westfields

Middlewich Road

Sandbach

Cheshire

CW11 1HZ

If you would like a copy of the text in this document in large print, Braille, audio tape 

or in another language, please contact us at the above address.

P
a
g
e
 5

3



www.cheshireeast.gov.uk

P
a

g
e
 5

4



Corporate Scrutiny June 10 

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO:  CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
12 July 2010 

Report of: Borough Solicitor 
Subject/Title: Forward Plan 

___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To consider the current Forward Plan in relation to the remit of this Committee. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Committee note the Forward Plan, identify any new items and 

determine whether any further examination of new issues is appropriate. 
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 The Forward Plan can be a useful tool for Scrutiny to assist with identifying  
           future items for consideration. 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change 
                                                              - Health 
 
6.1 Not known at this stage. 
 
 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 None 
 
8.0 Legal Implications  
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  
 

Agenda Item 11Page 55



Corporate Scrutiny June 10 

9.1 There are no identifiable risks. 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 The Forward Plan 1 July to 31October 2010 is attached. The Committee is 

asked to note the plan, to identify any new items and to decide whether any 
further examination of new issues is appropriate. 

 
11.0 Overview of Year One and Term One Issues 
 
11.1 It is good practice for Scrutiny to regularly consider the Forward Plan in so far 

as it relates to the Committee’s remit. 
 
12.0 Access to Information 
 

          The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report 
writer: 

 
 Name:    Mark Nedderman 
 Designation: Senior Scrutiny Officer 

           Tel No:   01270 86459 
            Email:    mark.nedderman@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 
FORWARD PLAN 1 JULY 2010 - 31 OCTOBER 2010 

 
This Plan sets out the key decisions which the Executive expect to take over the next four months. 
The Plan is rolled forward every month. It will next be published in mid July and will then contain all 
key decisions expected to be taken between 1 August and 30 November 2010.  Key decisions are 
defined in the Councils Constitution. 
 
Reports relevant to key decisions, and any listed background documents may be viewed at any of 
the Councils Offices/Information Centres 6 days before the decision is to be made.  Copies of, or 
extracts from these documents may be obtained on the payment of a reasonable fee from the 
following address:- 
 
Democratic Services Team 
Cheshire East Council , 
c/o Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach Cheshire CW11 1HZ 
Telephone:  01270 686463 
 
However, it is not possible to make available for viewing or to supply copies of reports or 
documents, the publication of which is restricted due to confidentiality of the information contained. 
 
A decision notice for each key decision is published within 6 days of it having been made.  This is 
open for public inspection on the Council's Website, Council Information Centres and Council 
Offices. 
 
The law and the Council's Constitution provides for urgent key decisions to be made.  A decision 
notice will be published for these in exactly the same way. 
 
 

Page 57



 
Forward Plan 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 

 

Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision 
Maker 

Expected Date 
of Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

How to make 
representation to the 

decision made 

CE09/10-37 
Review of 
Children's 
Homes 
Provision 

To decide how children’s homes placements 
will be provided to ensure good outcomes 
for cared for children in Cheshire East. 

Cabinet 19 Jul 2010 Children and Families 
Scrutiny Committee and 
the Children in Care 
Council. 

 
 

John Weeks, Strategic 
Director People 
 

CE09/10-40 
Leisure Services 
Strategic 
Framework 

To agree a framework for developing leisure 
services within Cheshire East. 

Cabinet 20 Sep 2010 Leisure Services 
Cabinet Sub Committee; 
wide consultation 
including with the public 
and user groups will 
follow as part of a major 
needs assessment. 

 
 

John Weeks, Strategic 
Director People 
 

CE10/11-41 
Malkins Bank 
Golf Course, 
Sandbach and 
Queens Park 
Golf Course, 
Crewe 

To decide upon the future delivery method 
of the Council owned golf courses. 

Cabinet 19 Jul 2010 Leisure Services 
Management and staff, 
American Golf 
(Leaseholder at Queens 
Park) and Malkins Bank 
Golf Society. 

 
 

Guy Kilminster, Head of 
Health and Wellbeing 
Services 
 

P
a

g
e
 5

8



 
Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision 

Maker 
Expected Date 
of Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

How to make 
representation to the 

decision made 

CE10/11-42 
Amendments to 
Conservation 
Area 
Boundaries in 
Crewe and 
Nantwich 

To endorse the amendments made to the 
boundaries of a number of conservation 
areas in the Crewe and Nantwich areas. 

Cabinet 19 Jul 2010 Parish Councils and 
owners in the areas 
concerned. 

 
 

John Nicholson, 
Strategic Director Places 
 

CE10/11-43 
Cheshire and 
Warrington 
Local 
Investment Plan 

To approve the Local Investment Plan, 
outlining investment in developing the 
economic base, expanding and 
strengthening communities and meeting the 
growing housing needs in the sub region, 
prior to submission to the Sub Regional 
Enterprise Commission.   

Cabinet 14 Jun 2010 Document is out for 
consultation with the 
Homes and 
Communities Agency, 
Registered Social 
Landlords, Economic 
Development and 
Spatial Planning. 

 
 

John Nicholson, 
Strategic Director Places 
 

CE10/11-44 
Review of Home 
Improvement 
Agency 
Services 

To consider the future provision of home 
improvement agency services. 

Cabinet 16 Aug 2010 Service commissioners, 
current home 
improvement agency 
services. 

 
 

John Weeks, Strategic 
Director People 
 

CE10/11-45 
Procurement of 
Utilities 

To assess the procurement options for 
utilities (gas and electricity) for the Council 
for contracts due to expire in June 2011. 

Cabinet 19 Jul 2010 Stakeholders, OGC and 
West Mercia Supplies 

 
 

Lisa Quinn, Borough 
Treasurer and Head of 
Assets (Section 151 
Officer) 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



 
Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision 

Maker 
Expected Date 
of Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

How to make 
representation to the 

decision made 

CE10/11-46 
Cheshire Rights 
of Way 
Improvement 
Plan 

To approve the Rights of Way Improvement 
Plan Strategy for 2011-2026, setting out the 
prioritisation of work in relation to the Public 
Rights of Way Network and wider 
countryside access. 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Health and 
Wellbeing 

Not before 1st 
Oct 2010 

Public meetings, focus 
groups, questionnaires 
and web based 
consultation. 

 
 

John Weeks, Strategic 
Director People 
 

CE10/11-47 
Local Service 
Delivery - Town 
and Parish 
Councils 

To agree the process and timetable for 
devolving and transferring functions, 
services and/or assets to Town and Parish 
Councils as part of the Councils overall 
transformation programme. 

Cabinet 19 Jul 2010 Town and Parish 
Councils – conferences 
and meetings with 
individual and clusters of 
Town and Parish 
Councils. 

 
 

John Weeks, Strategic 
Director People 
 

CE10/11-48 
Dementia 
Strategy 

To consider progress on the development of 
the dementia strategy including 
procurement, assets, the consultation 
process, and the request to close Cypress 
House. 

Cabinet 19 Jul 2010 Cheshire East Primary 
Care Trust and 
customers of Cypress 
House. 

 
 

John Weeks, Strategic 
Director People 
 

P
a

g
e
 6

0


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Work Programme Progress Report
	WorkprogrammeJune10newformat July 2010

	6 Legal Services Presentation
	10 Corporate Plan
	Appendix Corporate Plan_0106, 14/06/2010 Cabinet

	11 Forward Plan - Extracts
	Forward Plan July 2010


